
 

 
 
Notice of meeting of  

 
Effective Organisation Overview & Scrutiny Committee 

 
To: Councillors Watt (Chair), Horton (Vice-Chair), D'Agorne, 

Firth, Boyce, Gunnell, Hyman and R Watson 
 

Date: Tuesday, 12 January 2010 
 

Time: 6.00 pm 
 

Venue: The Guildhall, York. 
 

 
A G E N D A 

 
 
1. Declarations of Interest    
 At this point Members are asked to declare any personal or 

prejudicial interests they may have in the business on this 
agenda. 
 

2. Minutes   (Pages 1 - 6) 
 To approve and sign the minutes of the meeting held on 24 

November 2009. 
 

3. Public Participation    
 At this point in the meeting, members of the public who have 

registered their wish to speak regarding an item on the agenda or 
an issue within the Committee’s remit can do so. The deadline for 
registering is Monday 11 January at 5pm. 
  
 

4. Question & Answers with the Executive 
Leader and the Corporate Services 
Executive Member.   

 

 Members will be given the opportunity to have a discussion with 
the Executive Leader and Corporate Services Executive Member 
with regards to their plans and priorities for the next twelve 
months, as well as addressing more specific questions. 
 



 
5. Annual Audit Letter 2008/09 - Audit 

Commission.   
(Pages 7 - 44) 

 This report introduces the Annual Audit Letter 2008/09 (see 
Annex A) prepared by the Audit Commission which gives a clear 
audit opinion on the Council’s financial statements. 
 

6. Report on the 2010/11 Budget Strategy and 
Medium Term Financial Planning 2011/12 to 
2013/14.   

(Pages 45 - 58) 

 This report presents an Executive report dated 15 December 
2009 detailing the strategy being adopted for the development of 
the 2010/11 Revenue Budget and outlines the longer term issues 
linked to Public Sector funding and the implications these may 
have on the Council’s medium term financial planning. 
 

7. Review of the Effectiveness of the 
Forward Plan - Interim Report.   

 

(Pages 59 - 110) 

8. Work Plan   
 

(Pages 111 - 112) 

9. Urgent Business    
 Any other business which the Chair considers urgent under the  

Local Government Act 1972 
 

 
 

For more information about any of the following please contact the 
Democracy Officer responsible for servicing this meeting Laura 
Bootland Democracy Officer 
 

• Registering to speak 
• Business of the meeting 
• Any special arrangements 
• Copies of reports 

 
 

 



City of York Council Committee Minutes 

MEETING EFFECTIVE ORGANISATION OVERVIEW & 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

DATE 24 NOVEMBER 2009 

PRESENT COUNCILLORS WATT (CHAIR), HORTON (VICE-
CHAIR), FIRTH, BOYCE, GUNNELL, HYMAN, 
R WATSON (ITEMS 14-20) AND TAYLOR 
(SUBSTITUTE FOR CLLR D'AGORNE) 

APOLOGIES COUNCILLOR D'AGORNE 

 
14. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 
At this point in the meeting, Members were asked to declare any personal 
or prejudicial interests they may have in the business on the agenda.  
None were declared. 
 

15. MINUTES  
 
RESOLVED: That the minutes of the meeting of the committee held on 30 

September 2009 be approved and signed as a correct record 
by the Chair. 

 
16. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION  

 
It was reported that there had been no registrations to speak under the 
Council’s Public Participation Scheme. 
 

17. WORK PLAN  
 
Consideration was given to the committee work plan for 2009-10. 
 
It was noted that the Executive Leader and the Executive Member for 
Corporate Services had requested that they received advance notification 
of the questions that the committee wished to put to them prior to their 
attendance at a meeting.  The committee agreed that it would be useful for 
the Leader and Executive Member to attend the January meeting to outline 
their plans and priorities for the next twelve months, as well as addressing 
more specific questions. 
 
Members were informed that the Green Travel Plan for staff had been held 
in abeyance pending a decision being made in respect of the new council 
headquarters.  Members reiterated their request that information be 
provided to the Committee on the costs of offering free Park and Ride 
passes to council employees and requested that this be included in the 
work plan.   
 
RESOLVED: (i) That the work plan be updated to reflect the agreed 
    amendments. 

Agenda Item 2Page 1



(ii) That Members notify the Scrutiny Officer of questions 
for the Executive Leader and the Executive Member 
for Corporate Services. 

 
REASON: To ensure that a robust and relevant work plan is in place for 

the municipal year. 
 

18. SECOND PERFORMANCE AND FINANCIAL MONITOR FOR 2009/10  
 
Members received a report that provided details of the headline 
performance issues from the second performance monitor of 2009/10 
covering the period from 1 April to 30 September 2009.  The report 
updated on finance, performance and key projects and priorities.   
 
Discussion took place regarding the level of detail that the Committee 
would wish to receive when information was presented to them.  It was 
agreed that it would be beneficial for a training session to be arranged in 
order that Members could gain a greater understanding of how they could 
utilise the information in carrying out their role. 
 
Officers went through the key issues in the report and highlighted areas 
where there was significant variance.  Attention was drawn to financial 
pressures amounting to £1,842k that needed to be managed by 
directorates in order to contain overall spending within budget by the end 
of the financial year.  The savings required to contain the pressures 
equated to a reduction of 1.5% of net budget for each directorate.  The 
committee was pleased to note that, following the concerns that they had 
raised regarding the overspend in fostering costs for looked after children, 
the Learning and Culture Overview and Scrutiny Committee would be 
receiving a presentation on this issue.  The presentation would include an 
analysis of the current overspend.   
 
Discussion took place regarding the impact of the present economic 
situation on revenue and expenditure.  Members were concerned to note 
that should the current level of spend continue it would take the council 
well below the recommended minimum threshold for revenue reserves.  
They questioned officers as to how long it would take to recoup the 
reserves.  Officers explained that historically the council was an 
underspending authority and the underspend had passed into reserves.  
Medium-term financial planning was a key issue, particularly in the context 
of the likely outcome of the next spending review and the decisions on 
levels of public spending.    
 
Members commented on the implications for staff when posts were frozen 
and training budgets reduced.  It was agreed that it would be helpful for the 
Committee to receive a presentation on the “More for York” project and to 
receive a summary of the comments on the accommodation move and 
details of the staff survey.    
 
Consideration was given to the data on performance indicators.  Members’ 
attention was drawn to indicators where performance was deemed to be 
an exception (e.g. good improvement or possible areas of concern).   
 

Page 2



RESOLVED: (i) That the performance issues identified in the report be 
   noted. 
 

(ii) That the finance issues identified in the report be 
noted, including the following: 

• The significant pressures arising due to the 
economic recession and social care costs that 
are still evident across the council. 

• The work already undertaken within 
directorates to contain financial pressures. 

• The ongoing work to identify and implement 
options to meet the 1.5% savings targets 
required to contain spending within budget by 
the end of the financial year. 

• The longer term need for growth in some 
budgets, which will require compensating 
efficiencies and service transformation across 
the council. 

 
(iii) That a training session be arranged for the Committee 

on utilising the performance and financial monitoring 
data. 

   
REASONS: (i) To ensure that the council’s expenditure can be 
   contained within budget. 
 

(ii) To assist the Committee in utilising the data presented 
to them. 

 
19. PRESENTATION - RISK MANAGEMENT PROCEDURE.  

 
A presentation was given on the Council’s Risk Management Procedure.  
The presentation covered the following issues: 

• The risk management framework 
• Benefits and requirements 
• Application of risk management 
• Identification and reporting cycle 
• Key corporate risks 
• The role of the Audit and Governance Committee 
• The Risk Matrix 
• Evaluation of risk 
• Training and support available for Members and officers 
• A demonstration of Magique - the on-line risk register  

 
Members noted that the annual CPA rating for risk management had been 
“2” for each year from 2005-2008 but that the CAA rating for 2009 was “3”.  
Members welcomed the improvement that had been made and the efforts 
that were taking place to seek to attain a “4” rating. 
 
It was noted that Councillor Holvey was the nominated Risk Management 
Champion and his role was outlined to Members.   
 

Page 3



Discussion took place as to whether Members considered that the 
committee should carry out a scrutiny review into risk management.  
Although it was acknowledged that risks could not be eliminated entirely, 
concerns were expressed as to whether everything possible was being 
done to reduce them. Members were also concerned that the on-line 
register may not be being used effectively and that more needed to be 
done to ensure that it was fully embedded.  It was noted that an update of 
the software was due next year.   
 
Details were given of the monitoring carried out by the Audit and 
Governance Committee in respect of risk management, including the 
reporting arrangements that were in place.  Members agreed on the 
importance of avoiding duplicating work that the Audit and Governance 
Committee were already carrying out. 
 
RESOLVED: That a scrutiny review on risk management not be carried out 

by the Effective Organisation Overview & Scrutiny Committee 
at this time; but that the Committee’s concerns regarding the 
need to ensure that the on-line register is fully embedded 
throughout the organisation be brought to the attention of the 
Audit and Governance Committee with a request that this 
matter be kept under review as part of their ongoing 
monitoring1. 

 
REASON: To ensure effective monitoring of risk management. 
 
Action Required  
1. Refer resolution to the Audit & Governance Committee   
 

 
MC  

20. SCOPING REPORT - EFFECTIVE USE OF THE EXECUTIVE FORWARD 
PLAN.  
 
Members received a report that presented information on the legislative 
and constitutional requirements associated with an Executive Forward 
Plan.  The report highlighted those requirements that were not currently 
being met and suggested issues for further consideration as part of the 
review.  
 
Consideration was given to a number of issues with the current Forward 
Plan and the ways in which these could be addressed to ensure legislative 
and constitutional requirements were met.   
 
Discussion took place as to whether it would be appropriate to include only 
key decisions in the Forward Plan.  It was noted that should this change be 
recommended as a result of the review, additional recommendations would 
be required regarding how information on forthcoming non-key decisions 
should continue to be made available to Members and the public, in order 
to ensure the same level of transparency and opportunity for participation 
in decision-making.   It was agreed that it would be beneficial to seek the 
views of officers, including directors, forward plan contacts and the acting 
monitoring officer, regarding possible changes to the content and format of 
the Forward Plan. 
 

Page 4



RESOLVED: (i) That Members endorsed officers’ implementation of 
the following changes to the Council’s current working 
practices to ensure that they are in line with legislation: 

• To carry out the annual publication of its 
statement of intent. 

• To change the period covered by the Forward 
Plan to bring it in line with legislation, as 
detailed in paragraph 11 of the report.  

 
(ii) That it be recommended that the Forward Plan be 

produced on a monthly rather than a fortnightly basis 
and that consultation take place with Group Leaders 
regarding this matter. 

 
(iii) That the review focus on the following issues:  

 
• Whether the Forward Plan should be limited to 

key decisions only, and possible alternative 
methods of identifying non-key decisions if 
necessary. 

• Methods for addressing the issue of late 
submission of Forward Plan items. 

• Alternative format and content for the printed 
plan. 

 
(iv) That a task group comprising of the Chair, Vice-Chair 

and Councillor Firth be established to progress the 
review of the Forward Plan by seeking the views of 
officers and looking at examples of Forward Plans 
from other local authorities. 

 
REASONS: (i) To ensure that the publication of the Forward Plan is in 

accordance with legislative requirements and the 
Council’s Constitution. 

 
(ii) To ensure better use of resources and to support the 

correct use of the Forward Plan in line with the 
regulations.   

 

(iii) To progress the review of the effective use of the 
Forward Plan. 

 
 
 
 
 
Cllr Watt, Chair 
[The meeting started at 5.00 pm and finished at 7.05 pm]. 

Page 5



Page 6

This page is intentionally left blank



 

  

 

   

 
Effective Organisation Overview & Scrutiny 
Committee 

12 January 2010 

 
Report of the Assistant Director of Resources (Customer Service & Governance) 
and Assistant Director of Resources (Finance) 

 

Annual Audit Letter 2008/09- Audit Commission 

Summary 

1. This paper introduces the Annual Audit Letter 2008/09 (see Annex A ) 
prepared by the Audit Commission which gives a clear audit opinion on the 
council’s financial statements for 2008/09.  This report has already been 
discussed at Executive on 15 December 2009 and Audit & Governance 
Committee on 21 December 2009.  Prior to that, most of the content had been 
discussed at the Audit & Governance Committee on 21 September 2009 as 
part of the agenda items relating to the Annual Governance Report 2008/09 
and the Use or Resources Report 2008/09.  Both covering reports are attached 
at Annex B and Annex C which include the council’s response to these reports. 

 Background 

2. The District Auditor reports annually his independent opinion of the council’s 
arrangements based on an annual programme of work agreed by officers and 
members. This programme of work must meet the standards set out in the 
Code of Audit Practice and gives an opinion on the corporate governance 
arrangements at the council focusing on: 
• the opinion given on the council’s annual Statement of Accounts      

(including the Annual Governance Statement); 
• the council’s arrangements to secure value for money in its use of 

resources ( including confirmation of the Use of Resources score of Level 
2 ‘performing adequately’). 

  
Consultation  

3. Not relevant for the purpose of the report. 
 
Options & Analysis 
 

4. Not relevant for the purpose of the report. 

 

Agenda Item 5Page 7



Corporate Priorities 

5. This report contributes to the Effective Organisation priority within the 
Corporate Strategy. 

Implications 

6. There are no financial, HR, equalities, legal, crime and disorder, IT or property 
implications arising from this report. 

Risk Management 

7. By not responding effectively to the matters contained in the Annual Audit 
Letter, the council will fail to properly comply with legislative and best practice 
requirements, and its performance in future CAA assessments could be 
adversely affected. 

 
Recommendations 

8. Members are asked to: 
 

a)  note the contents of this report and the Annual Letter itself, attached as 
the annex to this report; 

 
Reason:  To inform the future business of the Committee as necessary. 

 
b)  note the council’s response to the issues raised by the District Auditor to 

be monitored Audit & Governance committee at future meetings as 
outlined in Annex B and Annex C 

 
Reason: To ensure the effective management and follow-up of key action 

to be taken to support on-going development and improvement 
work at the council. 

 
 

Contact Details 

Author: Chief Officer Responsible for the report: 
Pauline Stuchfield 
Assistant Director 
(Customer Service & 
Governance) 
Telephone: 01904 551706 

Ian Floyd 
Director of Resources 
Telephone: 01904 551100 
 
Report Approved ü Date 24th December 2009 

 
Specialist Implications Officers: Not applicable 
 
Wards Affected:   All ü 

 
 
For further information please contact the author of the report 

Page 8



 
Background Papers: See below 
 
Annexes 
 
Annex A Annual Audit & Inspection Letter 2008/09 
Annex B  Report to Audit & Governance Committee 21 September 2009 – 

Annual Governance Report 2008/09 
Annex C Report to Audit & Governance Committee 21 September 2009 –Use of 

Resources 2008/09 
 
  

Page 9



Page 10

This page is intentionally left blank



Annex A

Page 11



Annex A

Page 12



Annex A

Page 13



Annex A

Page 14



Annex A

Page 15



Annex A

Page 16



Annex A

Page 17



Annex A

Page 18



Annex A

Page 19



Annex A

Page 20



Annex A

Page 21



Annex A

Page 22



Annex A

Page 23



Annex A

Page 24



Annex A

Page 25



Annex A

Page 26



Annex A

Page 27



Annex A

Page 28



Annex A

Page 29



Annex A

Page 30



Annex A

Page 31



Annex A

Page 32



Annex A

Page 33



Annex A

Page 34



Annex B 

 

  

 

   

 
Audit and Governance Committee 21 September 2009 
 
Report of the Director of Resources  

 

Annual Governance Report – Audit Commission 

Summary 

1.   The International Standard on Auditing (United Kingdom and Ireland) – ISA 
(UK&I) - 260 requires the Audit Commission to report to those ‘charged with 
governance’, issues arising from the audit of Financial Statements. The 
purpose of this report is to bring to Members attention the Audit Commission’s 
Annual Governance Report, agree the Council’s response and seek approval 
to changes to the 2008/09 Financial Statements. A copy of the Audit 
Commission report is attached at Annex A. 

 

 Background 

2. In 2006 the Audit Commission introduced revised reporting arrangements that 
included a new requirement for an Annual Governance Report to be presented 
to those ‘charged with governance’ at the council, this requirement has been 
retained under the new Comprehensive Area Assessment (CAA). The report 
must be considered by the council before a statutory deadline of the 30 
September each year. This report is made in addition to the Annual Audit 
Letter which will be published in December 2009.  
 

3.  International Standard on Auditing (ISA) 260 also requires the Audit 
Commission to give an opinion on the Council’s arrangements for securing 
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources (the value for 
money conclusion). An unqualified Audit Opinion on the Council’s 
arrangements is anticipated by the 30th September 2009. 

 
4. The Pre-Audit Statement of Accounts 2008/09 were approved by Audit and 

Governance Committee on 29th June 2009 in accordance with the planned 
timetable and statutory deadline. Various improvement activities that had been 
introduced to the Closure of Accounts process were outlined in the covering 
report presented to the Committee. 

 
5. The nature of the continuing work on the audit of the financial statements 

accounts has necessitated a delay in the production of these papers. This has 
resulted from the extremely tight timescales involved in the project, and the 
need to provide Members with the most up-to date agreed position on the audit 
for consideration at the meeting.  The audit of the accounts will formally 
continue until the statutory deadline of the 30th September 2009 however 
during the course of the audit to date, a number of material misstatements 

Page 35



Annex B 

have been identified which the Council proposes to amend, Appendix 2 of the 
Annual Governance Report schedules those misstatements that the auditor 
considers are non-trivial. 

 
6. Appendix 3 of the Annual Governance Statement provides an analysis of 

misstatements to the accounts which the Council proposes not to amend the 
accounts to reflect. A Letter of Representation (as required by International 
Auditing Standards) has been prepared for signature by the Chair of this 
Committee following members consideration of this item. The Letter of 
Representation will explain that management believes the unadjusted 
amendments scheduled in Appendix 3 to be immaterial, both individually and in 
aggregate, to the financial statements as a whole. The letter has been drafted 
in accordance with the template provided by the Audit Commission. The 
Council’s S151 Officer will also be required to sign this letter. 
 

7.  In addition to the Annual Governance Report, a detailed schedule of 
amendments to the accounts has been provided at Annex B. This annex 
provides a comprehensive analysis of the impact of the changes referred to in 
the Annual Governance Report, together with details of trivial changes to the 
pre-audit statement of accounts which have not been detailed in the Annual 
Governance Report. A revised Statement of Accounts reflecting all the agreed 
changes will be available on the day of the meeting to be re-approved by Audit 
and Governance Committee  and signed by the Chair of the meeting. 

 
8. The Annual Governance Report acknowledges significant improvements in the 

process for closing the accounts. In particular, queries have generally been 
turned round in accordance with a new protocol agreed with the Auditors. 
Improvements to the internal Quality Assurance (QA) process have resulted in 
fewer issues being identified by the Audit Commission, although it is 
recognised that the internal QA process needs to be embedded even further 
into the Close of Accounts process for future years in order to ensure fewer 
errors are presented as part of the Pre-Audit Statement of Accounts.  

 
9. The production of the Statement of Accounts is the subject of continuous 

review and further improvements will be sought in 2009/10. This will be another 
challenging year bearing in mind the preparation required towards the 
implementation of International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) in 
2010/11, a topic which is the subject of a further report on this agenda. 

 
10. The Annual Governance Report contains an Action Plan which highlights a 

number of areas for improvement, all of which will be monitored by a 
Governance Group chaired by the Director of Resources. Key matters raised 
within the report, which remain unresolved during 2009/10 will be feature in the 
Annual Governance Statement for 2009/10. 

 

Consultation  

11. The report of the External Auditor has been discussed with the relevant 
responsible officers and has been approved in draft by the S151 Officer. It is 
reported here for due consultation with those members charged with 
governance at the council. 
 

Page 36



Annex B 

Options 
 

12. Not relevant for the purpose of the report. 

Analysis 

13. Not relevant for the purpose of the report. 

Corporate Priorities 

14. This report contributes to the overall effectiveness of the council’s governance 
and assurance arrangements. It directly contributes to the corporate priority of 
‘An effective Organisation’ in enhancing financial use of resources within the 
council. 

Implications 

15. There are no financial, HR, equalities, legal, crime and disorder, IT or property 
implications arising from this report. 

Risk Management 

16. The council will fail to comply with legislative and best practice requirements to 
provide for the proper audit of the authority if it does not consider this report or 
approve and sign off the letter of representation now required by International 
Auditing Standards. 
 

17. By not responding effectively to the matters contained in this report, the council 
will fail to properly comply with legislative and best practice requirements, and 
its performance in future CAA assessments could be adversely affected. 
 
Recommendations 

18. Members are asked to: 
 

(a) note and discuss the matters set out in the Annual Governance Report 
presented for discussion by the External Auditor; 
 
Reason 
To ensure the proper consideration of the opinion and conclusions of 
the External Auditor in respect of the annual audit of accounts and 
review of the council’s arrangements for ensuring value for money. 
 

(b)  consider the action plan arising from the report as set out in Appendix 
5 to the External Auditor’s report; 

 
Reason 
To ensure appropriate action is being taken by officers to address any 
matters raised by the External Auditor further to his report 

 

Page 37



Annex B 

(c) Consider the items identified in Appendix 2 of the Annual Governance 
Report and agree to amend the 2008/09 Statement of Accounts for 
those items. 

 
(d) Consider the items identified in Appendix 3 of the Annual Governance 

Report and agree not to amend the 2008/09 Statement of Accounts for 
those items. 

 
(e) Approve the amended Statement of Accounts 2008/09 

 
(f) Approve the letter of representation for signature by the Chair of this 

Committee, having first considered whether it sufficiently reflects the 
views and beliefs of the Committee as those charged with governance 
at the Council 

 
Reason 
To ensure compliance with International Auditing Standards and 
relevant legislative requirements. 
 

(g)  Note the anticipated receipt of an unqualified Audit Opinion to both the 
Statement of Accounts 2008/09 and the Council’s arrangements for 
securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources 

 
Reason 
To ensure Members of the Audit and Governance Committee are 
aware of any matters arising from the annual audit of the Statement of 
Accounts. 
 

 (h)  Note the improvements to the Closure of Accounts process in 2008/09. 

 

 

 

Contact Details 

 
Author: 

 
Chief Officer Responsible for the report: 

 
Keith Best 
Assistant Director (Finance) 
Telephone: 01904 551745 
 

 
Ian Floyd 
Director of Resources 
Telephone: 01904 551100 
 
Report Approved √ Date 15/9/09 

 
Specialist Implications Officers 
 
Not applicable 
 
Wards Affected:   All √ 

 
 

Page 38



Annex B 

For further information please contact the author of the report 
 
Background Papers: 
 
Audit and Governance Committee 29th June 2009 – Statement of Accounts 2008/09 
 
Annex 
 
Annual Governance Report 2008/09 
 
  

Page 39



Page 40

This page is intentionally left blank



Annex C 

 

  

 

   

 
Audit and Governance Committee 21  September 2009 
 
Report of the Director of Resources  

 

Use of Resources 2008/09: Audit Commission Report 

Summary 

1. This paper introduces a report (see annex) prepared by the Audit Commission 
summarising the findings from the Use of Resources Assessment relating to 
the financial year 2008/09 which is now operating within the Comprehensive 
Area Assessment (CAA) framework.  This is one part of a scored auditor’’s 
assessment with the Organisational Assessment aspect of the CAA process. 

 Background 

2. In the first year of CAA the Audit Commission has carried out its annual review 
of the council’s arrangements for use of its resources.  This focussed on a new 
suite of themes with the following overall scores: 

 
 

KLOE Score Theme score 
Managing Finances 
1.1 Financial planning 2 

2 1.2 Understanding costs & performance 3 
1.3 Reporting financial performance 2 
Governing the Business 
2.1 Commissioning & procurement 2 

2 2.2 Data quality 2 
2.3 Good governance 2 
2.4 Risk management & internal control 3 
Managing Resources 
3.1 Natural resources 2 2 
3.2 Asset management 2 
 Overall 

Score 
2 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Page 41



Annex C 

 
3. In summary the report concludes that the council performed adequately in its 

use of resources in 2008/09, based on an overall score of 2. The overall score 
is not comparable with the previous year’s score of 3 as it took place under a 
different assessment process which is explained in the report.   

 
4. The report states that ‘There are elements of strong performance across a 

number of the use of resources Key Lines of Enquiry (KLOE), in particular the 
Council's provision of value for money services, its risk management 
arrangements and elements of its commissioning of services’. 

 
5. Ongoing improvement actions will continue to be monitored, where 

appropriate, through the council’s Improvement Plan and Corporate Strategy, 
and by the Strategic Officer Governance Group chaired by the Director of 
Resources as part of the improvement work set down within the 2008/09 
Annual Governance Statement. 

 
Consultation  

6. The report and action plan has been discussed and agreed by officers. 
 
Options 
 

7. Not relevant for the purpose of the report. 

Analysis 

8. Not relevant for the purpose of the report. 

Corporate Priorities 

9. This report contributes to the overall effectiveness of the council’s governance 
and assurance arrangements and the achievement of the corporate priority 
‘Effective Organisation’. 

Implications 

10. 
• Financial – there are no financial implications to this report. 

• Human Resources (HR) – there are no HR implications to this report.  

• Equalities - there are no equalities implications to this report. 

• Legal - there are no legal implications to this report 

• Crime and Disorder – there are no crime and disorder implications to 
this report. 

• Information Technology (IT) - there are no IT implications to this 
report. 

Page 42



Annex C 

• Property - there are no property implications to this report. 

 
Risk Management 

11. By not responding to the content of this report, the council will fail to properly 
comply with legislative and best practice requirements, and its Use of 
Resources score in current and future CAA assessments could be adversely 
affected. 

 

Recommendations 

12. Members of the Audit and Governance Committee are asked to note the report 
and the progress the council is making in addressing the areas for 
improvement in this and previous reports. 

Reason 
To ensure the maintenance of an effective internal control environment at the 
council. 

 

Contact Details 

 
Author: 

 
Chief Officer Responsible for the report: 

 
Pauline Stuchfield 
Assistant Director (Customer Service 
& Governance) 
Telephone: 01904 551706 
 

 
Ian Floyd 
Director of Resources 
Telephone: 01904 551100 
 
Report Approved √ Date 11 September 2009 

 
Specialist Implications Officers 
 
Not applicable 
 
Wards Affected:   All √ 

 
 
For further information please contact the author of the report 
 
Background Papers: 
 
See below 
 
Annex 
 
Audit Commission Use of Resources Report 2008/09 
 
  

Page 43



Page 44

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

  

 

   

 
Effective Organisation Overview & Scrutiny Committee 12 January 2010 
 
Report of the Head of Civic, Democratic & Legal Services 

 

Report on the 2010/11 Budget Strategy and Medium Term 
Financial Planning 2011/12 to 2013/14 

Summary 

1. This report presents an Executive report dated 15 December 2009 detailing the 
strategy being adopted for the development of the 2010/11 Revenue Budget and 
outlines the longer term issues linked to public sector funding and the implications 
these may have on the council’s medium term financial planning.  

2. A report on the arrangements for the development of the 2010/11 Budget was 
originally approved by Executive on 23rd June 2009, and the report attached at 
Annex A seeks to provide further information to Members.   

Background 

3. As a result of the re-structure of the scrutiny function at the beginning of the 
municipal year 2009-10, the remit agreed for this committee includes the 
responsibility for considering the Council’s budget strategy.  This report is the first 
of this type, and the Committee will continue to receive such a report annually, 
around this time in December, until such time as this Committee’s remit is 
changed.  

Consultation  

4. The budget strategy has been discussed and supported at Corporate 
Management Team level which has resulted in each Directorate, via their 
Departmental Management Teams submitting budget proposals.   

Options  

5. Having considered the information within this cover report and the report at Annex 
A (and its associated annexes), Members may choose to:  

 
• ask questions of the Assistant Director of Resources who will be present at 

the meeting;  
• provide comments on the budget strategy 

 
 

Agenda Item 6Page 45



 

 

Analysis 
 

6. A full analysis of the budget strategy is included within the report at Annex A. 
 

Corporate Strategy 

7. The information and issues included in the report attached at Annex A are 
designed to demonstrate that the council’s financial planning is focussed on 
achieving the priorities set out in the council's corporate strategy (2009-12). 

 Implications 

8. Financial – There are no financial implications associated with the 
recommendation in this report.  In regard to the report at Annex A, the associated 
financial implications are detailed in the body of that report.  

9. There are no known Legal, HR, Equalities, ITT, Property or other implication 
associated with the recommendation in this report or the report attached at Annex 
A. 

Risk Management 
 
10. It is clear that the current economic climate and the longer term implications this 

may have on central government funding represents a significant risk in terms of 
preventing the council from delivering quality services and meeting its corporate 
priorities.  All financial planning decisions that are made need to be assessed for 
their sustainability in view of reduced funding and set against expectations that 
significant efficiencies are derived from the way in which the council delivers its 
services. 

 Recommendations 

11. Members are asked to consider the report at Annex A and provide any comments 
on the principles being adopted for the preparation of the 2010/11 budget.  

Reason: To assist their understanding of the budget strategy and its approach in 
2010-11 

Contact Details 

Author: Chief Officer Responsible for the report: 
Melanie Carr 
Scrutiny Officer 
Scrutiny Services 
Tel No. 01904 552063 

Dawn Steel 
Democratic Services Manager 

Report Approved ü Date 18 December 2009 
 
Specialist Implications Officer(s)  N/A 
 

Wards Affected:   All ü 

Page 46



 

 
Background Papers: N/A 
 
Annexes 
 
Annex A   – Report on the 2010/11 Budget Strategy and Medium Term Financial 

Planning 2011/12 to 2013/14 
Annex A1 – Unitary Authority Formula Grant – increases in funding for 2010/11 
Annex A2 – Unitary Authority Formula Grant – funding per capita fro 2010/11  
 

Page 47



Page 48

This page is intentionally left blank



Annex A 

 

 

  

   

Executive 15th December 2009 
 
Report of the Director of Resources 
 

2010/11 Budget Strategy and Medium Term Financial Planning 
2011/12 to 2013/14 

Summary 

1. This report seeks to update Members on the strategy being adopted for the 
development of the 2010/11 Revenue Budget, which will require approval from 
Council on 25 February 2010.  The report also outlines longer term issues 
linked to public sector funding and the implications these may have on the 
council’s medium term financial planning. 

2. The current funding assumptions underpinning the development of the 2010/11 
Revenue Budget are: 

a) A Council Tax increase of 2.9%. 

b) A Formula Grant increase of 2.5%, which is 0.5% below the average 
increase for unitary authorities and follows a ‘damping’ reduction of 
£1.155m. The settlement also sees the council as the 9th lowest out of all 
55 unitary authorities in per capita funding, equating to £153.99 below the 
national average for each person in the city. 

Background 
3. The 2009/10 Budget Report approved by Council in February 2009 contained a 

Medium Term Financial Forecast (MTFF) which broadly outlined the council’s 
financial strategy through to 2012/13.  The MTFF set out the main financial 
risks faced by the council, indicated a balanced position for 2010/11 and was 
based on a number of key assumptions, i.e.  

a) A Council Tax increase of 4%. 

b) Efficiency savings delivered through a transformation programme which 
would remove the need for unstructured ‘salami slicing’ of budgets.  

c) Resulting in additional financial capacity to allow investment in key 
corporate priority areas. 

4. Since the MTFF was produced, the economic climate has deteriorated 
significantly resulting in pressures on income generating services and 
additional demand for services from residents who have been worst hit by the 
recession. In addition, demand for social care across the city has risen 
dramatically, resulting in ongoing financial pressures in 2009/10 which will 
need to be addressed as part of the development of the 2010/11 Budget. 

Page 49



Annex A 

 

5. At the same time, the council’s corporate strategy has been refreshed which 
was approved by Council in April 2009.  Any financial planning decisions that 
are made should therefore work towards meeting the revised aims and 
objectives outlined in the strategy. 

6. A report on the arrangements for the development of the 2010/11 Budget was 
approved by Executive on 23rd June 2009, and this report seeks to provide 
further information to Members.   

2010/11 Revenue Budget – Latest position 
7. As part of the development of the 2010/11 Revenue Budget, a review of the 

MTFF has taken place and updates have been made in respect of key 
assumptions, which have been extended following a review of the council’s 
reserves and an assessment of the areas where corporate growth is seen as 
essential for financial pressures deemed unavoidable.  

8. The key assumptions underpinning the development of the 2010/11 budget are 
set out below: 

a) A Council Tax rise of 2.9%. 
b) A Formula Grant rise of 2.5%. 
c) The cash limiting of budgets for directorates, with the need to self fund all 

non-exceptional budget pressures within this cash limit, including: 
i) pay increases, i.e. operating on a cash standstill basis. 
ii) inflationary increases, as above. 
iii) any cost of appeals and increments arising from the Pay and Grading 

review. 
iv) one-off growth items to reduce pressure on the council’s reserves. 

d) An assumed level of savings gained through the More for York 
programme. 

e) The reinvestment of any such savings into priority areas identified as part 
of ongoing budget monitoring and from the corporate strategy. 

9. The provisional Formula Grant settlement was confirmed on 26 November 
2009 and it showed that York would be receiving a 2.5% increase in the grant 
for 2010/11, giving total funding of £44.570m.   This is low overall as York does 
not have a high deprivation level in comparison to other councils, which is one 
of the key drivers for allocating the grant.  In addition, York’s annual increase is 
top sliced under the ‘damping’ system to guarantee other councils a minimum 
level of grant, meaning a loss of £1.155m in 2010/11.  Annex 1, summarised in 
the table below, outlines the percentage increase in Formula Grant for all 
unitary authorities and shows that the average increase is 3.0% which is 0.5% 
more than York. 

Unitary Authority Rank
% Increase in Formula 

Grant  - 2010/11
Rutland (Highest) 1 6.2
York 34 2.5
Wokingham (Lowest) 55 1.5
Average 3.0

Page 50



Annex A 

 

10. The table below shows how much Formula Grant funding per person that York 
will be receiving in 2010/11 and compares this to other unitary authorities, the 
full results of which can be seen in Annex 2. It can be seen that York is ranked 
47th out of the 55 unitary authorities (9th lowest) and receives £153.99 per 
person less in funding than the average. 

 

11. The self funding of non-exceptional budget pressures by directorates, along 
with the work being carried out through the More for York programme, is 
designed to promote efficient delivery of services whilst at the same time 
ensuring funding is available for investment in key priority areas across the 
council. 

12. The 2009/10 budget monitoring process has identified areas of activity that 
currently have insufficient financial capacity to deal with the increased 
demands placed on those services. It is essential that priority is given to 
directing investment into these areas so that the planning and monitoring for 
service delivery can take place against an adequate resourcing platform. 

13. As a result of this it is apparent that the following three areas need to be at the 
forefront of discussions for additional investment:- 

a) Children’s Social Care – York’s Looked After Children (LAC) population 
has risen by 32% since March 2008 and investment is required to ensure 
that this area is adequately funded. A new government requirement for 
16/17yr olds to be classed as LAC will add pressures to this area 
anticipated to total approximately £2.1m. 

b) Adult Social Care – throughout 2009/10, the council has faced dramatic 
increases in learning disabilities cases, home care contracts and care for 
the elderly which is expected to continue to rise due to the ageing 
population. This rise in demand equates to approximately £1.8m in 
investment. 

c) Waste Management – includes the requirement to fund rising Government 
levies on Landfill Tax, the £8 per tonne increase of this costing the council 
a further £0.44m in 2009/10, as well as meeting household recycling 
targets. 

14. As part of the 2009/10 Budget, the council made a specific budgetary provision 
of £400k to deal with the effects of the economic downturn, which has affected 
services such as car parking, planning and leisure and the prolonged effects of 
this suggests that it would be prudent to consider increasing this provision as 
part of the 2010/11 Budget, with anticipated pressures next year totalling 
£1.3m. 

Unitary Authority Rank
Formula Grant Per 

Capita - 2010/11 (£'s)
Leicester (Highest) 1 639.56
York 47 224.19
Wokingham (Lowest) 55 126.69
Average 378.18

Page 51



Annex A 

 

15. Additionally, consideration must be given to Treasury Management where an 
eventual upturn in the economy would ease current financial pressures, 
currently predicted to be £3.1m in 2010/11, as well as providing revenue 
support that will assist the council in meeting its long term objectives through 
the capital programme. 

16. In summary, the council is facing spending pressures that, due to demands 
placed on services, greatly exceeds inflation. The council is committed to 
investing only in priority areas outlined in the corporate strategy which is 
exemplified by the fact that directorates will be expected to contain all pay and 
inflation costs within existing budgets. 

Linking Financial Planning and Corporate Priorities 

17. It is essential that the budget preparation process facilitates adequate 
resourcing of the council’s priorities as expressed in the corporate strategy. 
Some of the priorities will be addressed through specific growth bids, however 
many will result from internal re-alignment of existing budgets within 
directorates. Officers in corporate performance are working closely with 
directorates to ensure that sufficient resources are in place to deliver against 
the milestones contained in the corporate strategy. 

18. It is important that the process is transparent, and that there is seen to be a 
robust process of realignment of priorities, certainty over the way Directorates 
propose to meet the cost of pay and grading, and that it is demonstrated that 
funding has been allocated priority areas.  

19. As a result each directorate will need to have demonstrated, and where 
relevant submitted, on the following: 

a) Requests for priority growth areas. 

b) Clearly set out any budget realignment that they are proposing – i.e. 
proposed internal savings that will fund any new priority areas or 
inflationary pressures.  

c) Clearly set out how they will be dealing with the effects of Pay and 
Grading. 

Timeline 

20. A first round of budget meetings took place during November where each 
directorate was required to present the current pressures being faced, how 
they would fund these as well as explaining bids for corporate growth as 
outlined in paragraphs 12 to 15.  For directorates where further work is 
required to reach a balanced position, a second round of budget meetings will 
be taking place in the middle of December. 

21. Following this, each directorate will be taking a report to an Executive Member 
Decision Session during January where their plans will be considered in depth.  
Information made available will help form the basis of the 2010/11 Budget 
Report presented to Members in February. 

Medium Term Financial Planning Implications 

Page 52



Annex A 

 

22. The 2010/11 budget will be the last to be prepared under the current three year 
Comprehensive Spending Review (CSR) financial settlement, which as 
outlined in paragraph 8 will be providing the council with a 2.5% increase in 
government funding compared to 2009/10.  

23. Since the previous settlement was agreed, the UK’s economic landscape has 
changed dramatically which has placed great strain on public finances.  It is 
because of this that the council has to be prepared to accept that it will be 
subjected to cuts in the funding it receives from central government, with 
similar authorities predicting real term cuts of upto 5% year on year.  

24. A revised three year MTFF upto 2013/14 will be included as part of the 
2010/11 Budget Report which will have to display prudent assumptions on any 
future government funding. As a result, there is a need for significant debate 
over the coming months in terms of the council's readiness to deal with these 
potentially large funding reductions. This will require the council to change the 
way it delivers its services in ways that go beyond the work being carried out 
by the More for York programme.  

Consultation 

25. The budget strategy has been discussed and supported at Corporate 
Management Team level which has resulted in each directorate, via their 
Departmental Management Team’s submitting budget proposals.   

Corporate Priorities 

26. The information and issues included in this report is designed to demonstrate 
that the council’s financial planning is focussed on achieving the priorities set 
out in the council's corporate strategy (2009-12).  

Implications 

27. The implications are: 

• Financial - the financial implications are dealt with in the body of the report.   
• Human Resources - there are no human resource implications to this report. 
• Equalities - there are no equality implications to this report. 
• Legal - there are no legal implications to this report. 
• Crime and Disorder - there are no crime and disorder implications to this 
report. 

• Information Technology - there are no information technology implications to 
this report. 

• Property - there are no property implications to this report. 
• Other - there are no other implications to this report. 

 

Risk Management 

28. It is clear that the current economic climate and the longer term implications 
this may have on central government funding represents a significant risk in 

Page 53



Annex A 

 

terms of preventing the council from delivering quality services and meeting its 
corporate priorities.  All financial planning decisions that are made need to be 
assessed for their sustainability in view of reduced funding and set against 
expectations that significant efficiencies are derived from the way in which the 
council delivers its services. 

Recommendations 

29. It is recommended that Members: 

a) Note the principles being adopted for the preparation of the 2010/11 
budget, in particular the fact that any additional resources will be used to 
invest in key priority areas across the council. 

b) Note that work is continuing to review the impact of future public spending 
reductions as part of the ongoing development of the Council’s Medium 
Term Financial Strategy. 

 Contact Details 

Author: Chief Officer Responsible for the report: 

Andrew Crookham 
Corporate Finance 
Ext 2912 
 
 
 

Ian Floyd, Director of Resources 
Report Approved X Date December 2009 

Keith Best, AD Resources (Finance) 
Report Approved X Date December 2009 

 

Specialist Implications Officer(s): 

 

Wards Affected:  List wards or tick box to indicate all All X 

 
For further information please contact the author of the report 
 
Annexes: 
Annex 1 – Unitary Authority Formula Grant – Increases in Funding 2010/11 
Annex 2 – Unitary Authority Formula Grant – Per Capita Funding 2010/11 

Page 54



 

 Annex A1

Unitary Authority Formula Grant - Increases in Funding 2010/11 
Increase  
in Grant 

Increase  
in Grant 

Rank  
(Highest) 

Rank  
(Lowest) 

(£ million) (%) 
Rutland 0.452 6.2% 1 55 
Torbay 2.868 5.1% 2 54 
Blackburn with Darwen 3.848 4.9% 3 53 
Telford and the Wrekin 3.141 4.7% 4 52 
East Riding of Yorkshire 4.504 4.7% 5 51 
Cornwall 9.278 4.5% 6 50 
North Lincolnshire 2.462 4.1% 7 49 
Blackpool 3.175 4.0% 8 48 
Herefordshire 2.232 4.0% 9 47 
Bath & North East Somerset 1.583 4.0% 10 46 
Isle of Wight Council 2.284 3.9% 11 45 
North East Lincolnshire 2.680 3.8% 12 44 
Shropshire 3.383 3.8% 13 43 
Luton 3.145 3.6% 14 42 
South Gloucestershire 2.124 3.6% 15 41 
Medway 2.937 3.6% 16 40 
Peterborough 2.630 3.5% 17 39 
Milton Keynes 2.954 3.5% 18 38 
North Somerset 1.747 3.5% 19 37 
Stoke-on-Trent 4.257 3.5% 20 36 
Kingston upon Hull 5.028 3.4% 21 35 
Hartlepool 1.700 3.4% 22 34 
Derby 3.487 3.3% 23 33 
Durham 7.238 3.2% 24 32 
Nottingham 5.223 3.1% 25 31 
Redcar and Cleveland 2.061 3.1% 26 30 
Thurrock 1.758 3.0% 27 29 
Northumberland 3.695 2.9% 28 28 
Cheshire East 1.775 2.9% 29 27 
Leicester 5.035 2.8% 30 26 
Darlington 1.060 2.8% 31 25 
Stockton-on-Tees 2.081 2.7% 32 24 
Central Bedfordshire 1.333 2.7% 33 23 
York 1.108 2.5% 34 22 
Bristol 4.087 2.5% 35 21 
Plymouth 2.567 2.5% 36 20 
Bedford 1.299 2.5% 37 19 
Halton 1.525 2.4% 38 18 
Middlesbrough 1.916 2.3% 39 17 
Cheshire West & Chester 1.923 2.1% 40 16 
Southend-on-Sea 1.214 2.0% 41 15 
Southampton 1.879 1.9% 42 14 
Wiltshire 1.728 1.7% 43 13 
Portsmouth 1.396 1.6% 44 12 
Bournemouth 0.813 1.5% 45 11 
Bracknell Forest 0.386 1.5% 46 10 
Brighton & Hove 1.614 1.5% 47 9 
Poole 0.398 1.5% 48 8 
Reading 0.818 1.5% 49 7 
Slough 0.839 1.5% 50 6 
Swindon 0.748 1.5% 51 5 
Warrington 0.799 1.5% 52 4 
West Berkshire 0.432 1.5% 53 3 
Windsor and Maidenhead 0.278 1.5% 54 2 
Wokingham 0.289 1.5% 55 1 

Average % Increase 3.0% 

Page 55



Page 56

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 Annex A2

Unitary Authority Formula Grant - Funding Per Capita 2010/11 
Funding per  

Head of  
Population 

2010/11  
Formula  

Grant Population 
Rank  

(Highest) 
Rank  

(Lowest) 
£'s £000's Millions 

Leicester 639.56 285,148 182.370 1 55 
Middlesbrough 625.85 133,628 83.632 2 54 
Nottingham 602.52 286,458 172.595 3 53 
Kingston upon Hull 599.58 253,450 151.964 4 52 
Blackburn with Darwen 568.29 143,647 81.633 5 51 
Blackpool 555.29 147,305 81.797 6 50 
Hartlepool 554.39 92,935 51.522 7 49 
Stoke-on-Trent 540.11 235,678 127.293 8 48 
Halton 537.44 119,024 63.969 9 47 
Redcar and Cleveland 492.64 139,474 68.711 10 46 
Slough 485.22 116,970 56.756 11 45 
Luton 484.58 185,510 89.894 12 44 
Durham 465.50 496,978 231.341 13 43 
Derby 459.29 238,736 109.649 14 42 
Peterborough 458.21 168,078 77.014 15 41 
North East Lincolnshire 455.08 159,913 72.772 16 40 
Portsmouth 438.27 199,694 87.519 17 39 
Southampton 432.36 231,597 100.133 18 38 
Brighton & Hove 429.13 254,430 109.185 19 37 
Plymouth 428.24 247,574 106.022 20 36 
Isle of Wight Council 425.01 144,461 61.397 21 35 
Telford and the Wrekin 418.80 168,426 70.537 22 34 
Torbay 418.43 140,985 58.992 23 33 
Northumberland 416.67 312,572 130.239 24 32 
Stockton-on-Tees 404.07 193,521 78.196 25 31 
Bristol 401.82 415,359 166.901 26 30 
Reading 393.96 140,561 55.375 27 29 
Thurrock 393.07 152,046 59.765 28 28 
Cornwall 390.69 546,860 213.650 29 27 
Darlington 388.46 99,962 38.831 30 26 
Southend-on-Sea 383.42 160,397 61.499 31 25 
North Lincolnshire 378.78 164,359 62.256 32 24 
Milton Keynes 373.98 233,417 87.294 33 23 
Bournemouth 338.63 162,492 55.025 34 22 
Bedford 330.59 163,644 54.099 35 21 
Medway 328.95 258,795 85.130 36 20 
Herefordshire 316.59 181,888 57.584 37 19 
Shropshire 316.22 295,640 93.488 38 18 
East Riding of Yorkshire 290.38 348,967 101.334 39 17 
Cheshire West & Chester 281.39 332,213 93.482 40 16 
Warrington 277.52 194,723 54.040 41 15 
Swindon 269.75 187,756 50.647 42 14 
North Somerset 247.95 209,620 51.975 43 13 
Bracknell Forest 233.50 111,841 26.115 44 12 
Bath & North East Somerset 230.02 180,673 41.559 45 11 
South Gloucestershire 229.48 264,913 60.792 46 10 
York 224.19 198,805 44.571 47 9 
Wiltshire 219.86 465,945 102.442 48 8 
West Berkshire 199.25 146,717 29.234 49 7 
Rutland 198.89 38,797 7.716 50 6 
Poole 198.75 135,397 26.910 51 5 
Central Bedfordshire 194.61 260,597 50.714 52 4 
Cheshire East 173.86 365,167 63.487 53 3 
Windsor and Maidenhead 134.00 140,291 18.799 54 2 
Wokingham 126.69 154,372 19.557 55 1 

Average Funding Per Capita 378.18 

Page 57



Page 58

This page is intentionally left blank



 

  
 

   

 
Effective Organisation Overview & Scrutiny 
Committee 

12 January 2009 

 
Review of the Effectiveness of the Executive Forward Plan – Interim 
Report 
 

Background to the Review 

1. For some time, scrutiny Members have been expressing concern that their inability 
to carry out pre-decision scrutiny is due to the limited amount of time available 
between items appearing on the Executive Forward Plan and the relevant decision 
making meeting taking place.  Many items appear on the Executive Forward Plan 
(FP) on average six weeks before the decision is required and this may be 
insufficient time to carry out any pre-decision scrutiny of the issues without requiring 
a deferral of the issue to a later decision meeting.   

2.  With this in mind, this Committee agreed to look in detail at the current use of the 
Council’s FP in order to identify any methods for improving its use and 
effectiveness, and to agree a robust method for identifying issues suitable for pre-
decision scrutiny. 

3. In undertaking this review it is important that Members do not assume that the FP is 
the only tool available to assist in carrying out effective pre-decision scrutiny.  There 
may be wider planning issues to be addressed which may provide greater 
assistance. 

4. In November 2009, Members received a scoping report that presented information 
on the legislative and constitutional requirements associated with an FP. The report 
highlighted a number of requirements that were not currently being met and 
Members suggested that Democratic Services should make those necessary 
changes immediately to bring the Council’s FP in line with legislation.  

5. Having dealt with meeting the legislative requirements, the Committee identified a 
number of other issues to be addressed by this review: 

 
• the appropriateness of including only ‘Key’ decisions on the FP – it   was 

recognised that should they recommend this change, it would limit the public’s 
access to information on forthcoming ‘Non-Key’ decisions, thereby reducing 
their ability to participate in the decision-making process.  They therefore 
agreed that if as a result of their review, they were to recommend limiting the 
FP to ‘Key’ decisions only, they would also need to make recommendations in 
regard to an alternative mechanism for identifying forthcoming non-key 
decisions, in order to ensure the same level of transparency and opportunity 
for participation by Members and the public.  

Agenda Item 7Page 59



 
• The inability to use the FP as a method of identifying issues suitable for pre-

decision scrutiny, due to them appearing on the FP only 4/6 before the 
decision is required.  

• Whether the current format of the printed FP is overly complicated, and 
whether the information currently provided is relevant and/or sufficient 

 
6. With that in mind, the Committee agreed to focus their review on the following 

issues: 

• Should the Forward Plan be limited to ‘Key’ decisions only 
• The timing of Items appearing on the Forward Plan  
• Is the current format of the printed Forward Plan fit for purpose 
 

Consultation 
 

7. Both the Democratic Services Manager and the Monitoring Officer have been 
consulted in regard to the information gathered in support of this review.  The 
Democratic Services Manager will be present at this meeting to answer any 
questions arising. 

 
Information Gathered 

 
8. Limiting the Forward Plan to ‘Key’ decisions only  
 Since the introduction of Executive arrangements in York, the Council’s FP has 

always included both ‘Key’ and ‘Non-Key’ decisions.   The number of ‘Key’ 
decisions appearing on the FP is minimal in comparison to the number of ‘Non-Key’ 
decisions – as shown below: 

  
Municipal Year Number of Key Decisions Number of Non-Key Decisions 
2009 – 2010 1 (to date) 81 
2008 – 2009 7 219 
2007 – 2008 12 173 

  
9. These figures suggest that items are not being correctly identified as either key or 

non-key.  From a cursory examination of recent Executive agenda it appears that 
potentially more than one ‘Key’ decision has been taken this municipal year. 

 
10. In the case of ‘Non-Key’ decisions, it is expected that the figures for 2009-10 will be 

lower than previous years following the introduction of a separate log for 
‘information only’ reports, resulting in their removal from Executive Member agenda.  

   
11. Council is exceeding its legislative requirement by including non-key decisions on 

its forward plan.  Based on the number of ‘Key’ and ‘Non-Key’ decisions shown 
above, it is clear that there is an issue within the Council of identifying what is a 
‘Key’ decision.  This may be as a consequence of the Council’s constitutional 
definition i.e.: 

 
‘A decision made in connection with the discharge of a function which is the 
responsibility of the Executive and which is likely to: 

Page 60



• result in the Council incurring expenditure, or making savings, which are 
significant having regard to the Council’s budget for the service or function to 
which the decision relates i.e.: 

 
▫ make a saving of more than 10% of the budget for a particular area  - or be 

more than £500,000  

▫ require spending that is more than 10% of the budget for a particular area - 
or be more than £500,00  

• be significant in terms of its effects on communities ‘ 

 
12. Alternatively, it may be that there is a lack of understanding about the need to make 

this identification correctly, when the FP contains both ‘Key’ and ‘Non-Key’ items.  If 
this is the case, the removal of ‘Non-Key’ items from the FP may encourage  
officers to correctly identify the type of decision they require. 

  
13. There are some consequences to limiting the FP to ‘Key’ decisions only, e.g.: 

 
Consequence Effect / Available Solution 
It would seriously reduce the 
amount of work involved 
and time taken to populate 
and publish each FP.   

Effect - Reduced workload for: 
• Directorate based FP Contacts (currently the 

Director’s PAs act as FP Contact for their 
Directorate),  

• Forward Plan Administrator in Democratic 
Services.   

It would require another 
mechanism for identifying 
‘Non-Key’ decisions items 
for agendas 

Available Solution - The Committee Management 
System provides a simple mechanism for 
addressing this issue e.g.  
• an officer writing a report which requires a 

‘Non-Key’ decision can easily submit an 
agenda item onto the relevant draft agenda 
via the electronic system, well in advance of 
the meeting date.  

• Later, they can attach the associated report 
they’ve produced to that agenda item.   

• The Democracy Officer can see at a glance 
whether the report has been attached and 
can chase up the report as the report 
deadline approaches.   

• Once attached, the Democracy Officer can 
check the report in the usual way before 
publishing the agenda. 

 
Effect – Introducing the above mechanism would 
involve establishing a separate procedure for ‘Non-
Key’ decisions, which may be seen as an 
unnecessary complication 

It would require more focus 
on correctly identifying 
whether an item is ‘Key’ or 
‘Non-Key’ 

 
 
 

Page 61



14. Timing of Items Appearing on the Forward Plan 
The issue of deferring items on a FP has always been contentious, and many 
Authorities experience this.  Historically in York, it has led to many items appearing 
on the FP only 4/6 weeks in advance of the decision being required.  This is limiting 
the time available for scrutiny members to identify and carry out pre-decision 
scrutiny of the associated issues.   
 

15. It should be noted that the longer the period between an item appearing on the FP 
and the decision date, the more likely it is that the decision date will change, as the 
entries become more speculative.  A necessary consequence of including items 
early is that Members understand the need for flexibility around decision dates.  It is 
therefore recognised that an important cultural change at the Council is required in 
order to ensure an environment exists in which officers work within guidelines on 
acceptable reasons for deferral of FP items, and where Members accept the 
necessity on occasion for deferral.  The Committee Management System already 
provides a mechanism for recording reasons for deferral and enables those reasons 
to be visible online.   

 
16. The alternative method for identifying forthcoming ‘Non-Key’ decisions outlined 

within the table at paragraph 8 above, would not restrict report writers from adding 
these well in advance of the decision being required, thus enabling their earlier 
identification by scrutiny, allowing more time for pre-decision scrutiny to take place 
where necessary.    

 
17. Optimum Format of Printed Forward Plan 
 An example of this Council current FP format is shown at Annex A.  Only some of 

the information contained therein is required by legislation, leaving some scope for 
simplifying the process by reducing the amount of information required per item. 
However, the current printed format of the Council’s FP does not include all of the 
information required by legislation.  Therefore, whatever changes this Committee 
recommends to the layout and format of the FP, they must allow for the inclusion of 
the following information: 

 
• the members of the decision making body to be listed i.e. the names of the 

Executive Members (in practical terms it would be better for this information to 
appear at the beginning of the printed FP, rather than on each FP entry) 

 
• the steps that may be taken by any person who wishes to make 

representations, and the date by which those steps are to be taken (again, in 
practical terms it would be better for this information to appear at the beginning 
of the printed FP, rather than on each FP entry) 

 
• a list of the documents to be submitted to the decision maker for 

consideration, in relation to the matter in respect of which the decision is to be 
made (this information would be specific to each individual entry therefore it 
would need to appear on each one) 

 
18. In addition, although the Council’s Constitution states that details of any 

consultation taking place should be included (in line with the legislative 
requirement), in practice this does not happen in York.  The Council’s working 
practices therefore need revising to ensure this is done, where relevant.   

Page 62



 
19. There are over a hundred Council’s nationally using the same Committee 

Management System we have here in York.  Each of them produces a FP and 
many have chosen to adapt the style of their plan to best suit their individual needs.  
Many of these are much simpler and clearer than the format this council currently 
has in use – see examples shown at Annex B. 

 
Conclusion 
 

20. It is clear from the work of this review, that the FP is not the only tool for identifying 
forthcoming issues suitable for pre-decision scrutiny.  What is clear is that following 
the recent restructure of the decision making process and the introduction of the 
new standing scrutiny committees, the Council now needs a cultural change in the 
way that scrutiny is supported within the organisation.   It is felt that an improved 
level of support from Directorates, would help to ensure that the scrutiny 
committees were kept more informed of future work planned and developing policy 
changes, thus providing a working environment which would facilitate opportunities 
for carrying out pre-decision scrutiny.  An optimum mechanism therefore needs to 
be identified.  

 
21.  The scoping report the Committee considered at their last meeting, outlined one 

possible alternative method for identifying forthcoming ‘Non-Key’ decisions suitable 
for pre-decision scrutiny.  This suggestion involved the use of Directorate Business 
Plans populated with the planned work programming for the year - some of the 
Directorates already have an internal document which could perhaps be adapted for 
purpose.  Members would need to recognise that these documents were subject to 
change and not hold officers to account about the slippage or movement of items ( 
as in the case of deferred items on the FP)  The adapted Business Plans would 
need to identify items requiring decisions and generate the population of the 
Executive Forward Plan. 

 
22. There are a number of negative consequences associated with this suggestion:  
 

• revising the layout of the Directorate Business Plans to ensure they capture all 
the relevant information and populating those Business Plans would be labour 
intensive and would cancel out the saving in officer time gained through 
removing ‘Non-Key’ decisions from the FP. 

 
• The Business Plans would have to be made available publicly to retain the 

same level of transparency and opportunity for public involvement in the 
decision-making process, which may affect the information it could include i.e. 
only non confidential information.  This would reduce is current use and 
effectiveness within Directorates. 

 
• It sets up another procedure which may increase the complexity of the current 

arrangements 
 
23. Simultaneously to the work on this review, the Monitoring Officer has been  

considering how scrutiny and the support given to it might be improved.  This could 
include: 

 

Page 63



• The identification of a CMT member as lead for scrutiny to provide 6-monthly 
reports to relevant scrutiny committees on possible scrutiny topics suggested 
by CMT members/Senior Officers arising from future work planned within the 
Directorates (enabling pre-decision scrutiny) 

• Appropriate engagement between each Scrutiny Chair, relevant Executive 
Member and the CMT scrutiny lead. 

• Scrutiny leads within each Directorate to work with the relevant Scrutiny 
Committees, their Chairs and the Scrutiny Officers.  

• Officer agenda planning process for each scrutiny Committee akin to process 
for Executive 

 
24. The benefits of these changes might be:  
 

• improved buy into the role of scrutiny amongst senior officers across all 
directorates 

• an improved working relationship between the Executive and Scrutiny 
• improving scrutiny’s ability to undertake  constructive challenge and enhance 

their role in policy development 
 
25. If these changes were successful, it is hoped Members would need to be less 

concerned with using the FP as a tool for identifying pre-decision scrutiny issues.  
Essentially, this is more about working together effectively across the organisation 
to identify real opportunities for scrutiny to assist in future policy development.  

 
 Consultation on the Information Gathered 
 
26. At the meeting in November 2009, Members recognised it would be beneficial to 

seek the views of Executive Members, Group Leaders, Directors, Senior Officers, 
and FP Contacts on the suggested changes to the FP and options for earlier 
identification of topics for pre-decision scrutiny.  

 
27. To support Members consideration of the issues being addressed by this review, 

the relevant parties have been consulted on the information contained within 
paragraphs 6 - 25 above, and feedback from that consultation exercise is shown at 
Annex C (to follow). 

 
Analysis 
 

27. A brief analysis of the feedback received from the consultees is included in Annex 
C.   As a result of this review Members will be looking to make recommendations on 
improvements required to the layout and content of the Forward Plan, in order to 
maximise it effectiveness.  Members may choose to invite some of the consultees to 
attend a future meeting of the Committee to discuss further their consultation 
responses.  
 
Corporate Strategy 

28. This scrutiny review is in line with the Council’s aim to improve the Council’s  
organisational effectiveness i.e. ‘we shall be a modern council with high standards 
in all we do, living up to our values and be a great place to work.  As members of 

Page 64



the public are entitled to participate in the Council’s decision making process, it is 
important that the Council’s Forward Plan is robust and fully informative. 

 
Implications 

29. Legal - The Council’s Constitution will need to be updated to reflect any changes 
approved by the Executive as a result of this review. 

30. Human Resources – If a decision is taken to limit the FP to ‘Key’ decisions only 
and use the alternative mechanism outlined within the table at paragraph 9 to 
identify forthcoming ‘Non-Key’ decisions, this would result in a significant amount of 
officer time being saved through the reduction in time spent populating and 
administrating the Forward Plan. 

31. There are no known Financial, Equalities, Crime & Disorder, ITT, Property or Other 
implications associated with the recommendations in this report.  

Risk Management 
 

32. If the changes needed to ensure the Forward Plan is meeting the legislative and 
constitutional requirements are not made, there is a risk to the Council that the 
Forward plan will remain organisationally ineffective and moreover, not be operating 
in accordance with statutory requirements. 

 
Recommendations 
 

33. Members are asked to agree:  
 

i. who they would like to speak to about the operation of the FP, in light of the 
consultation responses  

 
ii. what further information they would like to receive (if any) regarding the 

content or format of the FP 
 
 Reason:   to progress the work of this review 
 
 
Contact Details 

Author: Chief Officer Responsible for the report: 
Melanie Carr 
Scrutiny Officer 
Scrutiny Services 
Tel No.01904 552063 

Dawn Steel  
Democratic Services Manager 
 
Interim Report Approved ü Date 23 December 2009 

Wards Affected:   All ü 
 
For further information please contact the author of the report 
 
 
Background Papers:    Scoping Report dated 24 November 2009 

Page 65



Annexes: 
 
Annex A – Current Printed Format of York’s Forward Plan 
Annex B – Examples of Alternative Formats for Printed Forward Plans 
Annex C – Consultation Feedback Form Members & Officers (to follow) 
 

Page 66



�

�
�

�
�
�

���������	�
�
�
�
�

����������������������������������
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

������������ ������������ ��!�
"�����#�$��%�"��&�'�
(��'�)�''�
$��%�
$����*
�
+�'�
�,�����-�..�����

�
�
�

Annex A

Page 67



�

/0/"1+23/����������	�
�
�

�)����!��)��/4���� �����5�����'�&6�

�
���� �����	
��� ������� ����� 
�� �� �
�	� �� ���� ������� ���� ����
���
�
���	�����	��
	�� 
�	�����	�	�������
���	������	�������	��
���
�������������
������	�����	�
��	�������������	���� 	������
!"	�� �� ����� ��	�� ���� 
�� ���
��#��� 	� �
��� ���
��� �	�
���������������
�

�)����!���&�&�%������!��&6�

�
��� 	������������� 	�������$�������������
�
�� 
�����
���������
%���
�
����������
���	����&���
��'�
�
•� 	��������	
������������	
�����	���������	��	� 
�����	�(���	���

����
�&�����	
	�	
��
�
•� ��
������������	
���)��#�������	����
��
�
�������
���
����
	��

	���*���
�&��+��������,�����	
��
�

�)����!���%������!��&6�

�
���������
�
��
�����
������������
�
����
���
���
����'�
�
•� 	� �����	� 
�� 	��� *���
�� 
�����
��� ������
	���$� �� ���
���

���
���$���
������� �
��
�
���	� ���
��� ������� 	� 	���*���
�&��
#����	����	�������
���������	
��	���
���	������
�
������	���

���'�

�
-� ����� �� ���
��� �� ���� 	���� �./� �� 	��� #����	� ��� ��

���	
����������������#������	����01..$...��
-� ��2�
��������
���	��	�
������	�����./���	���#����	����

�����	
���������������#������	����01..$..��
�

•� 	�#���
��
�
���	�
��	�������
	�������	���������
	
���
�
3�����
	
��	�����	���*���
����$���
�����
������������� 	��������
���
�
���
���
����
	��	���4��
�����,�����	
��+�����������	��	�
��
+��������($����	�(���	���*���
�&��*��	
	�	
��
�

�)����&#�������&����!��)�����5�����'�&��&���&6�

Annex A

Page 68



�
�����
�������	�����
��	����������������
�	�'��
�
•� �����
�	�����	���
�����
������	
��	�	���������������
•� 5��	�#���������������	���������
��#���
•� 5��	������	�	
���
���#�������	�������
��	������
�
��#�
���

�����
•� 5����������������������	�	
��	$��������
•� ���������������	��	���	�
����� 	�����
�����
���� ������
#���

���	���
���������	�����	���
�������	��
•� ������	����	������	
����	���
��������
�
��
������	�#��	�����
•� ���� 
���
��	
��� ���� ������ �� �
��� 	� 	��� *���
�� ������ 	���

���������	
����
	�
��	�������	�#�������	���
•� ������������
����
���#�������	���#���������
�
��	�����
�
2#�2�)� ����7������������&��&�����&��)�����5�����'�&8�5)�����2�
�&����6�
�
5�������� ���
#��$� ����� ��	��	� ��	�
��� ���� �
�	��� 
�� 	��� 
��
�
�����
��	�
��� 
�� 	��� ������� ������ � 3�� ��� ���� ������� ��� 	� �����
��	��	� �� ����� ���� �������� ��2�
�
��� �#�	� 	��� ������� ����$�
��������
���,�����	
��+���
����������6��.�7. �11�.""�
�
�
�

Annex A

Page 69



�

/0/"1+23/����������	�
�
�

�	�9��/+2"�	�	2�+����/
+�2/��
�

�

2+/:� ��(/�
��

� ��7�8������ 9 �

!.�����+�����:
�
	��  1�

;!..7<�.�*
	��+	��	����*��
	������������)�
	��!�8���	�  7�

�����	��+�#�
		������5�
	��4��� 9!�

;�����	��+�#�
		������5�
	��4��� 9"�

���
�	���	����:������	��
	��=:�>�+����?������� 9.�

@	����*�����*���
������
�
	��  9�

*��
	������������)�
	��!� ! �

;*��
	������������)�
	��(� "!�

*�	���	����������8����� �"�

*����	������	�)��������	�A���	��8���	� 9B�

;*����	����
������C�3�����
��+	��	����  !�

,�#	���
��� �7�

;,���
��	����BB�*������@����D���	
��
��������	�� 1(�

;����
��)��	�����������E���8���
������������ !B�

;F
������)�
�	������$������������
������������������!.�.���
!.���

( �

3�	����	
������G���
	��*�	���	����#�������
������
�
��
��E��� �B�

H��#�
���8�����
���������	����	��5����*����	
��������
����
��	
	
�����A���	�����������	�	
��

(.�

:���)�����	��!.�.<!.��� � �

)��������#�	����	��������?�������E���*����	�
��� (B�

;6�	
����+���
��������
���8�2�
�����	�� ("�

6�
��#�����+���
����*��
	���)�
	�
���A���	�� (!�

����������4����+��������������	�	�����
��������
���?�
�������9�
+	���'��+��	$�8�����	
������4����+������

B1�

�����������C��
������)�
	��!� !!�

;�����������C��
������)�
	��(� ".�

Annex A

Page 70



2+/:� ��(/�
��

;��#�
��8
��	����5�����3����	
��	
��
�	�	����	�	�����?������:���$�
8����	��

11�

��#�
��8
��	����5�������	
	
����2���	
���	��	���#�
���
��	��#�����	�
�	���
�����	�������	����	�����
���	�����
�������4���)��:����	�)��
:���$�,�
����������
�����?�	
���4�����

�.�

��#�
��8
��	����5�������	
	
����2���	
���	��	���#�
���
��	��#�����	�
�	���
�����	���	�������
���	������
���
�	�����8�����$�5��	�
������
���
?�	
���4�������

"�

;��#�
��8
��	����5������������	����	�
�	���#�
���
��	�������.�
����������
��	���:������8����������F���	��5���$�E���

B��

;��#�
��8
��	����5������������	����	�
�	���#�
���
��	�������.�
����������
��	���:������8����������F���	��5���$�E���

B(�

;��#�
��8
��	����5������������	����	�
�	���#�
���
��	������9�
����������
��	���+�	�#�����������)
������	��5���$�E���

19�

;��#�
��8
��	����5������������	����	�
�	���#�
���
��	������	���
���������#�	�����+	�����I��������������8�
������������$�F���	��
5���$�E���

17�

G���
	���������������������������
��������������E�����*��
	���?���	� �!�

;8���	�#������*�������	�	���*��	
	�	
��  .�

+�����������8��	�
�	��������	�� !"�

+
��)�	����+�����8��
���   �

;+	��������8�����	���
���� .�����������
�
	� 1.�

���������)��������	�)�
	��!� !��

;���������)��������	�)�
	��(� " �

����	���
��	����	���������
��$�	���	���
��	����	�����
#����'��+	���
���
�	���	�����

B9�

����	���
��	����	���������
��$�	���	���
��	����	�����
#����'��+	���
���
�	���	�����

B"�

;5
��
�	��@�(B(�)
���:����D���	
��
��������	�� 1��

5
��
�	��8���'��������3��������	�����*���
�	�� B�

�
��

Annex A

Page 71



���������	�
�2+/:�

:����&;��
�

�����	
���)��#������*
	��+	��	����

:����&;�������
�

.(<��<.7� <��5����� �

2����+�=���
�

�����	
���)��#���,��
�
������I6����I�
���	�����

+��'���#���=�����
�

5
��
�	��8���'��������3��������	�����*���
�	��

��!��=���&��
�

�������������	'�8���	��
���
��	��	����	��	��
��
���	�������
5
��
�	��8����������������	�$���������
�����	
������
�	
�
�
���	�����	����
�����	�	������	�����	�������		���	
���
������������
��������
�
)��#��������������	'�*��
����	��������������������	�
�����������������	������
����	�����#�
�������	�	
����

����!��##������
�

*�
�	��5���J�

��=������������ K���
������� ����'�&��#�����=����� !.<�.<.7��
	����:������� *���
����+	����?�������
	������������� ,
���	����*
	��+	��	����
"�&���������'!��
�

K���
�����$�F
������+���	�����
�����=�������	�C�+���	�>�
�
D��	�����
�����L����������
�

2�='�����&!�
�

�

	� �'��#���!%��
�

.��.(������	�#��� ���!�&�<���� �
�

:�%�&;���=��!�&�����&!��
�

6<��

����!!��
�

6<���

"�&!�'���!��
�

6<���

��%;���&�������&�!��
�

*��
		���8���	����5
��
�	��8���'��������
3��������	�����*���
�	��

"�''�2&� �
3��	�
��
	���
���������
���
	������������	����
�
�$�
	��
���
#�����
������#��+���	
���)��������	�*��
		����'��

.7<��<.7��
�

� �

���������	������
�����
��
����������	
� �
��������������������
�

� 	
��� �

���	����������	�����������	
��
�

�

�������������	������
�����������������	
�� �
� �
�	���������	
� �
�������������	������
������� ���������	
��
�

�

Annex A

Page 72



���������	�
�2+/:�

:����&;��
�

�����	
���)��#������*
	��+	��	����

:����&;�������
�

.(<��<.7� <��5����� �

2����+�=���
�

�����	
���)��#���,��
�
������I6����I�
���	�����

+��'���#���=�����
�

��#�
��8
��	����5�������	
	
����2���	
���	��	���#�
���
��	��#��
���	�
�	��������	���	�������
���	������
���
�	�����8�����$�
5��	�
������
���?�	
���4�������

��!��=���&��
�

�������������	'���������	�
��
����������	�	�������
�	�����
��	
	
����
����#�����
���	���
�
���
��	����
�
�
	��
����
���	��������
	��	���#�
��������	�������
���	��
�����	�
�	�����
�����	���
�������
	���������������
���������	
���
���#����
���
��	�������������
	
���������	���	��
������������	���	��
��	�������?�	
���
4������
��
��	������
�����!���	��$���#D��	�	�������	��������
��������
���#�
�������������
�
)��#��������������	'�����	���
������	�������	�	���������
��������
	��?�	
���4������#�������	������
���	
���
��2�
�����	����

����!��##������
�

5��	�
����5���J�

��=������������ ��
���)���
��� ����'�&��#�����=����� !.<�.<.7��
	����:������� *���
����+	����?�������
	������������� ,
���	����*
	��+	��	����
"�&���������'!��
�

��
���)���
��
�
��
�������
�L����������
�

2�='�����&!�
�

�

	� �'��#���!%��
�

.��.(������	�#��� ���!�&�<���� �
�

:�%�&;���=��!�&�����&!��
�

6<��

����!!��
�

6<���

"�&!�'���!��
�

6<���

��%;���&�������&�!��
�

*��
		���8���	������#�
��8
��	����5�������	
	
��
��2���	
���	��	���#�
���
��	��#�����	�
�	��������	���	�����
��
���	������
���
�	�����8�����$�5��	�
������
���?�	
���
4�������

"�''�2&� �
3��	�
��
	���
���������
���
	������������	����
�
�$�
	��
���
#�����
������#��+���	
���)��������	�*��
		����'��

.7<��<.7��
�

� �

���������	������
�����
��
����������	
� �
��������������������
�

� 	
��� �

Annex A

Page 73



���	����������	�����������	
��
�

�

�������������	������
�����������������	
�� �
� �
�	���������	
� �
�������������	������
������� ���������	
��
�

�

��

Annex A

Page 74



���������	�
�2+/:�

:����&;��
�

�����	
���)��#������*
	��+	��	����

:����&;�������
�

.(<��<.7� <��5����� �

2����+�=���
�

�����	
���)��#���,��
�
������I6����I�
���	�����

+��'���#���=�����
�

��#�
��8
��	����5�������	
	
����2���	
���	��	���#�
���
��	��#��
���	�
�	��������	�������	����	�����
���	�����
�������4���)��
:����	�)��:���$�,�
����������
�����?�	
���4�����

��!��=���&��
�

�������������	'���������	�
��
����������	�	�������
�	�����
��	
	
����
����#�����
���	���
�
���
��	����
�
�
	��
����
���	��������
	��	���#�
��������	�
����
���	�
�����	�
�	�����
�����	���
�������	�
�����������������
������
���������	
���
���#����
���
��	���
����������	
���������	���	��
������������	���	��
��	�������
?�	
���4������
��
��	������
�����!���	��$���#D��	�	�������	�
���������������
���#�
�������������
�
)��#��������������	'�����	���
������	�������	�	���������
��������
	����?�	
���4�����#�������	������
���	
���
��2�
�����	����

����!��##������
�

,�
��������C�5�	�����5���J�

��=������������ ��
���)���
��� ����'�&��#�����=����� !.<�.<.7��
	����:������� *���
����+	����?�������
	������������� ,
���	����*
	��+	��	����
"�&���������'!��
�

��
���)���
��
�
��
�������
�L����������
�

2�='�����&!�
�

�

	� �'��#���!%��
�

.��.(������	�#��� ���!�&�<���� �
�

:�%�&;���=��!�&�����&!��
�

6<��

����!!��
�

6<���

"�&!�'���!��
�

6<���

��%;���&�������&�!��
�

*��
		���8���	������#�
��8
��	����5�������	
	
��
��2���	
���	��	���#�
���
��	��#�����	�
�	��������	�������	��
��	�����
���	�����
�������4���)��:����	�)��:���$�
,�
����������
�����?�	
���4�����

"�''�2&� �
3��	�
��
	���
���������
���
	������������	����
�
�$�
	��
���
#�����
������#��+���	
���)��������	�*��
		����'��

.7<��<.7��
�

� �

���������	������
�����
��
����������	
� �
��������������������
�

� 	
��� �

Annex A

Page 75



���	����������	�����������	
��
�

�

�������������	������
�����������������	
�� �
� �
�	���������	
� �
�������������	������
������� ���������	
��
�

�

��

Annex A

Page 76



���������	�
�2+/:�

:����&;��
�

�����	
���

:����&;�������
�

�9<��<.7� <��5����� �����	
�J�

2����+�=���
�

�����	
���,��
�
������I6����I�3���	�����

+��'���#���=�����
�

G���
	���������������������������
��������������E�����*��
	���
?���	�

��!��=���&��
�

�������������	'������	
������������	�����
��������D��	��	�

������2���
	�����������������	
���	�	������
�������6�������
�����	
��?���	����(����� �������������������������
	�������
��$�
���
��#�������
���������D�������
������	���$���
��	�$�

���������	����	��������
	����
���
�����������
����	���
��
�����&����������������
����
���#����
	��������	��������	���
���
�	��	�	�#������������
	�
���
����	�����	���������#�
���
����	�����
�
)��#��������������	'�������������������	
�����	���
�������+�#�����$�*��
	��������$�����#��������	���������E�����
������	������+��������	�����
�$�	���#
���4M�8�01.$...�	�
����
�������
����@
���A6,�8�01.$...��
���#�����
�������	�	���
,��
�
��+���
��������	
���)��#�����	����(	��4�	#���!..7���

����!��##������
�

����5����J�

��=������������ 8�������
����������

����'�&��#�����=����� .1<��<.7��

	����:������� *���
����*����8���
����
	������������� ,
���	����:����
��$�*��	����C�*�
�����I��+���
����
"�&���������'!��
�

8����������������
�
����������������L����������
�

2�='�����&!�
�

�
����
���

	� �'��#���!%��
�

. �."�8�������
��
	�
�����2�
����

���!�&�<���� �
�

:�%�&;���=��!�&�����&!��
�

6<��

����!!��
�

6<��

"�&!�'���!��
�

6<��

��%;���&�������&�!��
�

*��
		���8���	����G���
	�������������������������
��
��������������E�����*��
	���?���	�

"�''�2&� �
3��	�
��
	���
���������
���
	������������	����
�
�$�
	��
���
#�����
������#��+���	
���)��������	�*��
		����'��

!(<��<.7��
�

� �

���������	������
�����
��
����������	
� �
�������������������� *)��� 	
��� !�<�.<.7��

Annex A

Page 77



�
���	����������	�����������	
��
�

�

�������������	������
�����������������	
�� �
� �
�	���������	
� �
�������������	������
������� ���������	
��
�

�

��

Annex A

Page 78



���������	�
�2+/:�

:����&;��
�

�����	
���

:����&;�������
�

�9<��<.7� <��5����� �

2����+�=���
�

�����	
���,��
�
������I6����I�3���	�����

+��'���#���=�����
�

:���)�����	��!.�.<!.���

��!��=���&��
�

�������������	'�����
������
�����	�����
	
����������������
#��
��
	���	����
�	�	���:���)�������	������
�
���������
!.�.<!.�����
�
)��#��������������	'�3��
	��	�����
	
����������
	��	���������	�
�����
�	
���		������
�	����:���)�����,���	���
��	��	���
:���)�������	������
�
���������!.�.<!.����

����!��##������
�

����5����J�

��=������������ ��������		�� ����'�&��#�����=����� .1<��<.7��
	����:������� :������
	������������� *�
��������	
���
"�&���������'!��
�

��������		�
�
��������		L����������
�

2�='�����&!�
�

�

	� �'��#���!%��
�

.��.(������	�#��� ���!�&�<���� �
�

:�%�&;���=��!�&�����&!��
�

6<��

����!!��
�

6<���

"�&!�'���!��
�

6<���

��%;���&�������&�!��
�

*��
		���8���	����:���)�����	��!.�.<!.���

"�''�2&� �
3��	�
��
	���
���������
���
	������������	����
�
�$�
	��
���
#�����
������#��+���	
���)��������	�*��
		����'��

!(<��<.7��
�

� �

���������	������
�����
��
����������	
� �
��������������������
�

G*?�=6����	
������
*
�����	
��,����
���
���>��

	
��� �1<�.<.7��

���	����������	�����������	
��
�

�

�������������	������
�����������������	
�� �
� �
�	���������	
� �
�������������	������
������� ���������	
�� �

Annex A

Page 79



Page 80

This page is intentionally left blank



Annex BPage 81



Annex BPage 82



Annex BPage 83



Annex BPage 84



Annex BPage 85



Annex BPage 86



Annex BPage 87



Annex BPage 88



Annex BPage 89



Annex BPage 90



Annex BPage 91



Annex BPage 92



Annex BPage 93



Annex BPage 94



Annex BPage 95



Annex BPage 96



Annex BPage 97



Annex BPage 98



Annex BPage 99



Annex BPage 100



Annex BPage 101



Annex BPage 102



Annex BPage 103



Annex BPage 104



Annex BPage 105



Annex BPage 106



Annex BPage 107



Annex BPage 108



Annex BPage 109



Annex BPage 110



 
Effective Organisation Overview & Scrutiny Committee Work Plan 2009-10 

 
 
Meeting Date Work Programme 
30 June 2009 1.   Report on Overview & Scrutiny Committees - Terms of Reference  

2.   Information Report on Improvement Plan 2009/10 
3.   2008/09 Year End Outturn Report     
4.   Corporate Strategy – Key Performance Indicators & Actions for 2009/10  –  Understanding the corporate 

priorities relevant to the Committee’s ‘terms of reference’ in order to establish a baseline for making 
proposals for changes to the Corporate Priorities in 2010/11 

 
30 September 2009 1.   First Quarter Monitoring Report  

2.   Feasibility Report for possible review of ‘The Executive Forward Plan’ 
3.   Update Report presenting correct performance indicators relevant to this Committee and feedback on 

referrals previously made to SMC 
4.   Two Feasibility Reports  - subject to expected topic registration forms being submitted (on HR and Project 

Management) 
 

24 November 2009 1.   Second Quarter Monitoring Report 
2.   Presentation on Risk Management 
3.   Scoping Report for Review on Effective Use of the Executive Forward Plan 
 

12 January 2010 1. Attendance of the Executive Leader & the Executive Member for Corporate Services 
2. Budget Strategy Report 
3. Report presenting the Council’s Annual Audit Letter  from the Audit Commission  
4. Interim Report for Scrutiny Review of ‘The Effective Use of the Executive Forward Plan’ 
 

23 February 2010 1. Third Quarter Monitoring Report 
2. Annual Reports from relevant Local Strategic Partners 
 
 

 

 

A
genda Item

 8
P

age 111



P
age 112

T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	5 Annual Audit Letter 2008/09 - Audit Commission.
	Annex A
	Annex B
	Annex C

	6 Report on the 2010/11 Budget Strategy and Medium Term Financial Planning 2011/12 to 2013/14.
	Annex A
	Annex A1 Budget Strategy
	Annex A2 Budget Strategy

	7 Review of the Effectiveness of the Forward Plan - Interim Report.
	Annex A - FP Extract.doc[1]
	Annex B

	8 Work Plan

